

BROOKLYN VILLAGE NEWS May 20, 2013

Clerk's Office - 455-4201

Fax - 455-1385

PO Box 189 210 Commercial St

Email: clerk@brooklynwi.gov

Public Works Dept. - 455-1842

Fax - 455-1501 102 Windy Lane

Email: publicworks@brooklynwi.gov

Police Department - 455-2131

Fax - 455-1799

Email: police@brooklynwi.gov

Municipal Court - 455-1168

Email: brooklynjudge@charter.net

Village Board - Nadine Walsten, President Economic Develop. – Heather Kirkpatrick, Chair Finance – Dean Van Den Eng, Chair Ordinance – John McNaughton, Chair Personnel – Dean Van Den Eng, Chair Planning/Zoning – Nadine Walsten, Chair Public Works – Todd Klahn, Chair Recreation – Jill Van Den Eng, Chair Safety – Sue McCallum, Chair



Starting at Legion Park. 5K Run 8:00 AM 5K Walk 8:05 AM (Registration opens at 7AM) Fee: \$20.00 (Pre-Registration Deadline: May 24th, 2013 5K Run/Walk entry with a T-Shirt. After May 24th fee will be \$25 and t-shirt is not guaranteed unless you pre-register)

To be pre-registered your completed registration form must be received before May 24th, 2013. Please make checks payable to: *Brooklyn Recreation* and Please mail checks to:

Village of Brooklyn, P.O. Box 189, Brooklyn, WI 53521

www.brooklynrecreation.org

BROOKLYN VILLAGE BOARD MEETING MINUTES May 13, 2013

The Village Board meeting was called to order on May 13, 2013 at 6:33 p.m. Trustees Van Den Eng, Lust, and Frandy, were present. Trustee Klahn, McNaughton, and McCallum were absent. Others present were Clerk Strause, PW Director Langer, Chief Barger, Rachel Brickner, and Alison Koelsch. The Pledge of Allegiance was cited by all. There were no public Comments. Walsten reported she received three comments regarding the new squad questioning the decision to spend funds on an SUV type squad car. Walsten explained to the residents why there is a shift from sedans to SUV types for many departments.

A presentation of the **Oregon Area Senior Center services** was given by Rachel Brickner, Nurse Case Manager, and Alison Koelsch, Senior Center Director. My Senior Center, new software, swipe card tracks who is participating and when. More detailed statistical data is now available. The new contract will be based more on use by each municipality's residents rather than by population. Services/programs provided were discussed. A computer lab is also available with computer classes offered. Brickner provides the Village with a monthly article which is published in the newsletter. The Village has not had a liaison resident from Dane County representing the Village for some time but hopes to appoint someone soon.

Trustee Frandy moved, second Lust, carried to approve the minutes of 4-8-13. Trustee Van Den Eng abstained. Frandy moved, second Van Den Eng, carried to approve the minutes of 4-16-13. Trustee Van Den Eng moved, second Frandy, carried to approve the minutes of 4-22-13. Trustee Van Den Eng moved to postpone approval of the 4/30/13 minutes, then amended his motion to approve these minutes, second Frandy, carried.

President Walsten reported on the Economic Development Professional meeting she attended at Larson Acres on May 9th and the Small Business Association and Affordable Care Act meeting on May 1st. Walsten also attended the house blessing for Habitat for Humanity on Second St on April 20th. The Oregon Habitat for Humanity group has built ten units. On April 29th, there was a joint municipal meeting to discuss the Senior Center contract gathering input from representatives that will be in the contract. A local Veteran's Memorial committee meeting was held recently investigating a location in the Village, design, and funds needed to erect a memorial to honor veterans. Municipal Clerks week and Police recognition weeks were the past two weeks with Public Works recognition week next week. Employees were able to enjoy a carry out meal from Country Café last week to celebrate the recognition. Walsten stated she would be leaving for a while to take care of her brother tentatively returning on June 9th. Trustee Van Den Eng is the next person in line as defined in the Village's Emergency Management Plan.

Clerk Strause reviewed the March 2013 financial report with \$70,197 in income, \$209,870 expenses and a month end balance of \$1,527,279 for all investments.

Public Works Report: Trustee Klahn was re-elected Chair. Well #1 is back on line with the repair work completed. The area has to be reseeded and horseshoe pits rebuilt. Sand removed from the well was placed in the playground areas. There has been no word yet from the insurance company on coverage for the failed equipment. The Fire Dept will be burning the buildings in the **Business Complex** this Thursday with all permits now in place. The buildings were checked for asbestos with negative findings. The permit fee to DNR is \$100. The cost to abandon the farm well will be \$420 in the business park. The **Smithfield shelter roof bid** opening was held on 4-19-13 with three bids being received. Nine companies were sent RFP's. The PW committee recommends hiring Dan Olson. Van Den Eng moved, second Frandy, carried to approve the low bidder, Dan Olson with a heavier gauge steel for \$2676.44. Langer reported the Village will be receiving all of DNR's 2013 Catastrophic forestry grant funds in an amount up to \$22,368 to clean up Mt Hope Cemetery from the December 2012 storm. The grant will also include stump removal and planting of some trees. The Village was the only applicant for these funds and bidding for the work will be done soon. There are no matching funds for this grant. Work has to be completed before Dec 18, 2013. Langer reported on the Village's first Arbor Day celebration. Pictures will be on the website. There are four criteria to have **Tree City status** with the celebration being one of them. The fourth grade classes from

Brooklyn Elementary and President Walsten attended the tree planting event. Creating a Tree Board is another criteria. Van Den Eng moved, second Frandy, carried to designate the PW Committee as the Village's Tree Board. Crack seal quotes were sent to seven companies with four responding. DNS Asphalt had the lowest price for N Rutland Ave and Green County Highway lowest price for items #2-6 on the bid sheet. Langer stated he wants to rotate chip seal and crack seal projects in future years. Trustee Van Den Eng moved, second Lust, carried to approve contracts with DNS Asphalt for item #1, North Rutland for \$4523 and items #2-6 to Green County Highway Dept for \$4514 if the budget allows all items to be done. Langer reported he installed a "Donated by Oregon Youth Softball" sign on the new ball diamond fence at Legion Park. A Certificate of Appreciation will be presented to the organization on June 18th before their league games start. Director Langer reported on the CMAR (to be discussed later on the agenda) that has a perfect 4.0 rating and recognized Utility Supt. Spilde for a job well done with good record keeping. Dumpster days are over and Langer will report on this next month.

New Business: Setting a date for the **Business Complex public informational meeting** was discussed. Invitations will be sent to the neighboring properties giving them an opportunity to see the project status. This meeting will be from 5-7 pm with the Public Works Committee meeting to follow. Langer & Straka are asked to talk to Dale Arndt about the possible berm or other backyard barrier on the west side of the complex and options for the flow of water to the east for drainage. Quorum of Board members may be present at the informational meeting.

Safety Report: Chief Barger reviewed the call status sheet. The department was without a squad for two weeks during the changeover. The **new squad** is now in service with an unknown cost overrun due to new technology in equipment needing to be installed. More equipment can now be carried in the vehicle. **New World System** is moving ahead with Officer Engelhart catching up on the back log during the squad changeover time. Last week was **Law Enforcement Memorial recognition**. Barger reported the number of officers killed in the line of duty is up 21% already this year. Once a week Barger does a walk through at Brooklyn Elementary School spending more time at the school working on communication and emergency plans. Background checks have not been done yet in regards to the hiring of a **part time officer**.

Unfinished Business: Economic Development Committee is organizing the contest to name the street entering the Business Complex. The chair of EDC, Heather Kirkpatrick is working with Brit Springer and Errin Welty on creating the rules for the contest and the publicity. Third and fourth grade kids at the Brooklyn Elementary School will be putting their ideas together for the contest. Deadline is mid june for turning in selections. A street name will be chosen at the July Village Board meeting. The winner will receive a street sign replica. A draft contract for a **joint municipal Court system** between Brooklyn and Belleville will be sent to the police chiefs for review before Village Boards review the draft. It will then go to the District 5 Court Administrator before going to each municipal attorney. **Ordinance recodification** is not moving forward at this time. Walsten will gather those ordinances completed and send to Municipal Code before the June Board meeting. When the Methodist Church appoints a representative, the **Community Building Policy review** committee will meet. The new **Senior Center funding agreement** continues to be worked on with the last meeting April 29th and the next meeting in May where Oregon's attorney and work group will together meet. Consent Agenda: Van Den Eng moved, second Frandy, carried to approve the consent agenda as follows: Approve payment of May 2013 invoices as listed; Approve Temporary Class "B"/"Class B" permit for Brooklyn Fire & EMS for Legion Park June 22-23, 2013 for Antique Tractor Pull; Temporary Operator licenses for above: Steven Boettcher, Daniel Dean, Darren Arndt; Compliance Maintenance Annual Report Resolution #2013-05 setting forth the following actions necessary to maintain effluent requirements: a) The Public Works Committee and Village Board will continue to review the user charge system/revenue sources in 2014 b) Acknowledged the Grade A rating and proficiency of Wastewater staff.

Committee reports: Planning & Zoning – no report. Ordinance- John McNaughton was elected Chair. A Policy for Ordinance Adoption was presented. Who should decide if additional review is needed was discussed. The Policy currently states "the Ordinance Committee shall determine if additional review is needed by consultants, attorney or other committees." It was questioned if an ordinance is out of their area of expertise, if it should be referred to a consultant for drafting. It was felt

if the word "review" in item #2 is changed to "input" would give the committee clearer direction. Van Den Eng moved, second Frandy, carried to approve the Policy with the wording correction from "review" to "input" in item #2. Fire/EMS- The Fire District Board Chair, John Marx, will request to bring back to the Board the contract between the Fire District and the Village regarding sharing an employee for administrative work in the Fire Department. All designated employee reference will be removed from the contract. **EDC**-The latest **Economic Development Strategic Plan**, drafted by Errin Welty, Vierbicher, was presented for approval. EDC recommends approval. Trustee Frandy moved, second Lust, carried to approve. Trustee Van Den Eng abstained as his copy had missing pages and he was unable to review the entire copy. Britt Springer is working with Heather Kirkpatrick on the web pages marketing the Business Complex and having the Business zoning code available also on the web. Marketing and community profiles for the Business Complex are now complete. Heather is also working on condensing the community survey for the website. Britt has been designing a logo for the Business Complex. All will come before the Board for final approval. Walsten reported a first meeting was held with a prospective client for the Complex. The need is for two acres with their most preferential lot being the back lot on the east side. Information is being gathered by both parties before a second meeting is held. **Recreation-**No financial report is ready for the **dime a dip** yet but plans are already started for next year's event. Some contributions are coming in for the July 4th **fireworks.** Much more is needed as no tax dollars are budgeted for this event. Donation cans will be out in businesses this week. The DJ is not confirmed yet. Money that was approved previously (\$600) for a **timing clock** has been found to not be enough for an outdoor timing clock. Frandy moved, second Van Den Eng, carried to allow up to \$1500 for a timing clock, funds of which will come from Recreation's Special Revenue Fund. Trustee Van Den Eng moved, second Frandy, carried to hire Summer Recreation help as follows: Approve hiring Lyra Gullickson, Summer Rec Coordinator at \$12 per hr for up to 30 hours a week from June 17-August 1; Approve hiring Julie Landphier, Summer Rec Coordinator Assistant at \$10.25 per hr for up to 16 hours a week from June 17-August 1; Approve hiring Gabby Proto, Summer Rec Coordinator Assistant; at \$10.50 per hr for up to 16 hours a week from June 17-August 1. Emergency Management – Walsten stated she has not heard back from Dane County Emergency Management on the definition of the "rumor control center", wording included in the **Public Information Officer job description.** Van Den Eng moved, second Frandy, carried to postpone. Personnel-Trustee Van Den Eng was re-elected chair. Procedural guidelines for Village **Board meetings** were presented. Trustees wanting to speak will need to be recognized by the chair. Trustees can interject if calling a question. A point of order may be raised at any time if the rules appear to have been broken. Frandy moved, second Van Den Eng, carried to approve these guidelines. **Employee reference request policy,** as part of Section 8.21 of the Employment Manual, was presented. Van Den Eng moved, second Frandy, carried to approve as presented. **Orientation Handbook for Committee Members** was presented. Frandy moved, second Van Den Eng, carried to approve the handbook correcting typo and formatting issues. Because the **Municipal Court system** has a backlog of monthly reports with money due to Dane and Green Counties, Frandy moved, second Lust, carried to approve the Personnel Committee to hire a temporary court clerk to file these reports. Recycling and Website Committees had no reports. Finance-Trustee Van Den Eng was re-elected chair. Frandy moved, second Van Den Eng, carried to approve Clerk Strause and Deputy Clerk Brewer attending **the Workhorse training** in Dodgeville on May 29th and closing the office. Clerk Strause explained the formula for the expenditure restraint program and funding which is a part of shared revenue received from the State. Even though the 2012 levy was kept the same as 2011, the reduction of debt service from General Fund operational expenses left a larger increase than the allowable amount to qualify for Expenditure Restraint money in 2014. Debt service was reduced because of the loan refinancing in 2012. Strause reported she is going to remove interdepartmental fund transfer accounts; in particular, Capital Projects Fund from the General Fund so that the fluctuation of project costs from year to year will not affect the Expenditure Restraint formula. Van Den Eng moved, second Frandy, carried to adjourn at 9:05 p.m. Carol Strause, MMC, WCMC, CMTW



Summer Youth Recreation begins on Mon., June 24 from 1pm-4pm at the Legion Park Shelter and ends on August 1..

Cost: \$15.00 per child, \$5.00 for each additional child. This fee will help us with a multitude of expenses necessary for providing this program. The Summer Youth Recreation Program runs 6-weeks, Monday through Thursday. Children who live in Brooklyn are welcome to spend time in this program where we provide a safe place to have fun, socialize and learn a little during the summer. Sign-up sheets will be available on Registration Day, (date to be determined), at the Brooklyn Village Hall and on the Brooklyn Web Site:

www.brooklynwi.gov

Watch for more info in next month's newsletter. What can you expect from the program...lots of fun! Our program includes all kinds of activities for your child that range from Arts & Crafts to a variety of sports and physical activities. Our program is well rounded to provide learning skills, exploration and of course field trips!

We look forward to another great summer and meeting all of the kids interested in the program. For more information please contact Stacy Wolfe from the Brooklyn Recreation Committee via email at jaswolfe@msn.com

PUBLICWORKS

Brush Pickup Has Begun

(2nd Tuesday of each month)

Please place brush in the terrace at the curb, staying away from any electrical/telephone equipment. All cut ends need to be placed in the same direction.

NOTE: Leaves are **NOT** picked up in the spring. You can bring them to the compost pile at the Wastewater Treatment Plant on S. Rutland.

May Law of the Month

Stop for school buses

According to Wisconsin law, drivers must stop a minimum of 20 feet from a stopped school bus with its red warning lights flashing. Drivers must stop whether the bus is on their side of road, on the opposite side of the road, or at an intersection they are approaching. However, drivers are not required to stop for a school bus if they are traveling in the opposite direction on the other side of a divided roadway separated by a median or other physical barrier.

When they are passed illegally, school bus drivers are authorized to report the violator to a law enforcement agency and a citation may be issued. The owner of the vehicle, who might not be the offending driver, will then be responsible for paying the citation.

A citation for failure of a vehicle to stop for a school bus costs \$326.50 with four demerit points. If reported by a school bus driver, the vehicle owner's liability for the illegal passing of a bus costs \$326.50 with no demerit points.



The Brooklyn Recreation Committee would like to give a big THANKS to all those who donated a dish and/or volunteered at the Dime A Dip Dinner on May 2nd. We would also like to say thank you to all those who attended the dinner. We appreciate your support. This event raised over \$500.00, which will go towards future Recreation Committee events and/or park equipment

CLERK'S OFFICE

The Clerk's office and the Public Works Dept. will be CLOSED on Monday, May 27th, in observance of Memorial Day. The Clerk's office will also be closed from 8:00am-5:00pm on Wednesday, May 29th for training.



News from Your Senior Center By Rachel Brickner

No one likes to think of senior citizens as being the targets of abusive behavior, but unfortunately they sometimes are. **Elder abuse** refers to intentional or negligent acts by a caregiver or trusted person that causes harm to a vulnerable senior.

The most common type of elder abuse is financial exploitation, but there are many other forms elder abuse can take. These include: physical abuse, neglect, emotional or psychological abuse, abandonment, sexual abuse and self-neglect. Sadly, the most common elder abusers are members of the senior's own family. Elder abuse can happen to anyone. It cuts across all socio-economic groups, races and cultures. The seniors who are statistically most likely to be victims of elder abuse are 80 and older, and women are more likely to be abused than men. Additional risk factors include social isolation, dementia, and poor physical health. Mental health or substance abuse issues (on the part of the victim or the abuser) may also contribute to elder abuse. If you suspect a senior is the victim of elder abuse, report it. Contact the Senior Center to report your concerns, and do so anonymously if you feel you must. We can alert staff in the county in which the senior lives to explore and investigate whether abuse is indeed taking place. While the Senior Center staff tries to be aware of the seniors in the area, neighbors, friends, and family members are generally much more familiar with a particular senior's routine and habits, and are much more likely to observe signs of abuse.

Protecting seniors from abuse is everyone's responsibility. The Senior Center tries to reduce the risk factors associated with elder abuse, by reducing social isolation, keeping a watchful eye on vulnerable seniors, providing exercise classes and opportunities to try to maximize seniors' physical health, and supporting as much independence as possible for as long as possible. On a lighter note, there are two programs on the Senior Center calendar in May that you might want to participate in. On May 22 at 1:00 the Senior Center will celebrate its 32nd anniversary with cake and treats and a musical program by John Duggleby. On May 28 at 1:00, the Center will host a program on **Maintaining Brain Health at Any Age**. Both of these programs are free, but we do appreciate knowing how many people to expect, so please call and reserve your seat at 835-5801.

SENIOR POTLUCK LUNCH

Thursday, May 23rd, 2013 - Noon Brooklyn Community Building kitchen Bring a dish to pass and enjoy some good company!

BROOKLYN METHODIST CHURCH ICE CREAM SOCIAL June 6th, 2013 - 4:30 - 7:30 pm

Barbeque, hotdogs, brats, baked beans, chips, assorted desserts, ice cream, coffee, soda and lemonade.

Crowning of Brooklyn Dairy Queen 7:00 pm

(Everyone is invited!)





POLICE DEPT

APRIL ACTIVITY REPORT

Domestic/Family	2
Assists	9
Open Records Request	1
Parking Citation	1
Suspicious Activity	3
Theft	2
Traffic incidents	7
Traffic Warnings	3
Traffic citations	4
Damage property	1
Disturb/disorderly	2
Alarms	1
Municipal Ord. Violations	<u>2</u>
Total	38

JULY 4TH IS APPROACHING!

Please contact us to donate to our Annual 4th of July Entertainment & Fireworks Show!